
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

February 8, 2016 
5:00 PM 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Jason Burnett, Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation  
4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

a. Applicants for Board of Education and Announcement of Interviews 
6. Proclamation – National FBLA-PBL Week; February 8-14, 2016 
7. City Manager’s Report 
8. Councilors’ Reports 
9. Approval of Minutes –  January 25, 2015  (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business  

10. Resolution Number 4789 – A Resolution Adopting The 2014 Jefferson County Multi-
Hazard Mitigation Plan  (Public Hearing)  

11. Ordinance Number 2628 – An Ordinance Granting Conditional Use Approval For The 
Intended Purpose Of Allowing Subleasing Of A Single Family Residence To Three (3) 
Unrelated Individuals Until May 2016   (Public Hearing) 

New Business  

12. Resolution Number 4790 – Approving An Alcohol License For Vestavia Mart, 2544 
Rocky Ridge Road For The Off-Premise Sale Of 050 Retail Beer And 070 Retail Table 
Wine; Sadeq Mohamed Maflahi, Executive   (Public Hearing) 

13. Resolution Number 4791 – A Resolution Adopting And Implementing The 2014-2015 
Classification Survey Of The Personnel Board Of Jefferson County, Alabama 

14. Resolution Number 4792 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 
And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 

15. Resolution Number 4793 – A Resolution Approving Disclosure Controls And Procedures 
And Certain Other Related Matters 

 



New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

16. Resolution Number 4799 – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4728 For An 
Additional $90,000 To Complete Construction Of A Small Portion Of Roadway Known 
As Hollis Crossing 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

17. Ordinance Number 2630 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 1724 Vestaview Lane, Charles 
Farrell, III, Owner 

18. Ordinance Number 2631 – Rezoning – 1724 Vestavia Lane; Rezone From Jefferson 
County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Charles Farrell, 
III, Owner 

19. Ordinance Number 2632 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2738 Rocky Ridge Road; 
Cameron Eaton And Tison Barganier 

20. Ordinance Number 2633 – Rezoning – 2739 Rocky Ridge Road; Rezone From Jefferson 
County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning For Annexation With A 40’ 
Front Setback Similar To Adjacent Developments; Cameron Eaton And Tison Barganier, 
Owners 

21. Ordinance Number 2634 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-1 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances Entitled “Wald Park” And Amending Ordinance Number 2255 
Section 1 Entitled “Park Rules And Regulations” To Establish Amended Rules, 
Regulations And Hours Of Operation For Wald Park 

22. Ordinance Number 2635 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-2, Vestavia Hills Code 
Of Ordinances, Republished 2015 Entitled “Liberty Park Sports Complex” And Section 1 
Of Ordinance Number 2256 Entitled “Park Rules And Regulations”, To Amend Hours Of 
Operation, Rules And Regulations For Liberty Park Sports Complex 

23. Ordinance Number 2636 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-3 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances Republished 2015 Entitled “Little Shades Creek Park” And To 
Amend Section 2 Of Ordinance Number 2178 Entitled “Park Rules And Regulations”, To 
Amend Regulation Of The Hours Of Operation, Rules And Regulations For McCallum 
Park 

24. Ordinance Number 2637 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-4 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances Republished 2015 Entitled “Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex 
Cahaba Heights” And To Amend Section 1 Of Ordinance Number 2257 Entitled “Park 
Rules And Regulations” To Amend Regulation Of The Hours Of Operation, Rules And 
Regulations For Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex Cahaba Heights 



25. Ordinance Number 2638 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-5 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances Republished 2015 Entitled “Byrd Park” And To Amend Section 1 
Of Ordinance Number 2180 Entitled “Park Rules And Regulations” For Amended 
Regulation Of The Hours Of Operation, Rules And Regulations For Byrd Park 

26. Ordinance Number 2639 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-6 Vestavia Hills Code 
Of Ordinances Entitled “Shallowford Park” And Amend Section 1 Of Ordinance Number 
2181 Entitled “Park Rules And Regulations” To Amend The Hours Of Operation, Rules 
And Regulations For Shallowford Park 

27. Ordinance Number 2640 – An Ordinance Naming The Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex, 
Regulate The Hours Of Operation, And Establishing Rules And Regulations For Said 
Park 

28. Ordinance Number 2641 – An Ordinance Naming The Meadowlawn Park, Regulate The 
Hours Of Operation, And Establishing Rules And Regulations For Said Park 

29. Resolution Number 4794 - Annexation – 90-Day – 3425 Jones Drive; Estate of Millie 
Weaver, Owner 

30. Ordinance Number 2642 - Annexation – Overnight – 3425 Jones Drive, Estate of Millie 
Weaver, Owner 

31. Resolution Number 4795 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2510 and 2512 Dolly Ridge Road, 
Lots 21 & 22, Dolly Ridge Estates; Don and Kristie Garett and Todd and Leeba Strong, 
Owners 

32. Ordinance Number 2643 – Annexation – Overnight – 2510 and 2512 Dolly Ridge Road, 
Lots 21 & 22, Dolly Ridge Estates; Don and Kristie Garett and Todd and Leeba Strong, 
Owners 

33. Resolution Number 4796 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2611 Alta Vista Circle, Lot 7, 
Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Chad Speegle, Owner 

34. Ordinance Number 2644 – Annexation – Overnight – 2611 Alta Vista Circle, Lot 7, 
Altadena Valley Country Club Sector, Chad Speegle, Owner 

35. Resolution Number 4797 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2425 Kenvil Circle; Lot 37, Resurvey 
of Lots 18-20, 33-37 & 46-48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector; Anna and Brandon Rooks, Owners 

36. Ordinance Number 2645 – Annexation – Overnight – 2425 Kenvil Circle; Lot 37, 
Resurvey of Lots 18-20, 33-37 & 46-48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector; Anna and Brandon 
Rooks, Owners 

37. Resolution Number 4798 – Annexation – 90-Day – 4705 Caldwell Mill Road; David 
Acton Building Corporation, Owners 

38. Ordinance Number 2646 – Annexation – Overnight –4705 Caldwell Mill Road; David 
Acton Building Corporation, Owners 

39. Citizens Comments  



40. Executive Session – Sale/Purchase Of Property 
41. Motion For Adjournment 



                                      PROCLAMATION 
 
WHEREAS,  Future Business  Leaders  of America-Phi Beta Lambda  is a 
          Nonprofit  educational  organization  whose first  chapter 
          was established in Johnson City, Tennessee in 1942; and 

 
WHEREAS,  it has grown  now to  encompass  over 250,000  members and 
          advisers  nationwide  in  middle  schools,  high  schools, 
          colleges, universities, career and technical schools,  and 
          private business schools; and 

  
WHEREAS,  FBLA-PBL is a professional business organization dedicated 
          to bringing business and education together in a  positive 
          working  relationship  through  innovative leadership  and 
          career development programs; and 

 
WHEREAS,  members perform community service activities and strive to 
          build a  student’s  understanding of the  realities of the 
          modern business world; and 

 
WHEREAS,  FBLA teaches high school students basic business and lead- 
          ership  principles,  and  PBL  helps  university, college, 
          technical and business school students to make the transi- 
          tion from school to work; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I  Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. by  virtue  of  the au- 
          thority  vested in  me  as Mayor of  the City of Vestavia 
          Hills  in the  State of Alabama, do  hereby proclaim  the 
          week of February 8-14, 2016 as 

 
                                                  NATIONAL  FBLA-PBL  WEEK 

 
          and encourage all residents  to support the endeavors  of 
          the  members of this  organization during  this week  and 
          throughout the year. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have 
hereunto set my hand and 
caused the Seal of the 
City of Vestavia Hills to 
be affixed this the 8th 
day of February, 2016. 

 

 
___________________________ 
Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
Mayor 



Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

February 8, 2016 
5:00 PM 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Jason Burnett, Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation  
4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

a. Applicants for Board of Education and Announcement of Interviews 
6. Proclamation – National FBLA-PBL Week; February 8-14, 2016 
7. City Manager’s Report 
8. Councilors’ Reports 
9. Approval of Minutes –  January 25, 2015  (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business  

10. Resolution Number 4789 – A Resolution Adopting The 2014 Jefferson County Multi-
Hazard Mitigation Plan  (Public Hearing)  

11. Ordinance Number 2628 – An Ordinance Granting Conditional Use Approval For The 
Intended Purpose Of Allowing Subleasing Of A Single Family Residence To Three (3) 
Unrelated Individuals Until May 2016   (Public Hearing) 

New Business  

12. Resolution Number 4790 – Approving An Alcohol License For Vestavia Mart, 2544 
Rocky Ridge Road For The Off-Premise Sale Of 050 Retail Beer And 070 Retail Table 
Wine; Sadeq Mohamed Maflahi, Executive   (Public Hearing) 

13. Resolution Number 4791 – A Resolution Adopting And Implementing The 2014-2015 
Classification Survey Of The Personnel Board Of Jefferson County, Alabama 

14. Resolution Number 4792 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 
And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Property 

15. Resolution Number 4793 – A Resolution Approving Disclosure Controls And Procedures 
And Certain Other Related Matters 

 



New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

16. Resolution Number 4799 – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4728 For An 
Additional $90,000 To Complete Construction Of A Small Portion Of Roadway Known 
As Hollis Crossing 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

17. Ordinance Number 2630 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 1724 Vestaview Lane, Charles 
Farrell, III, Owner 

18. Ordinance Number 2631 – Rezoning – 1724 Vestavia Lane; Rezone From Jefferson 
County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Charles Farrell, 
III, Owner 

19. Ordinance Number 2632 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2738 Rocky Ridge Road; 
Cameron Eaton And Tison Barganier 

20. Ordinance Number 2633 – Rezoning – 2739 Rocky Ridge Road; Rezone From Jefferson 
County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning For Annexation With A 40’ 
Front Setback Similar To Adjacent Developments; Cameron Eaton And Tison Barganier, 
Owners 

21. Ordinance Number 2634 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-1 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances Entitled “Wald Park” And Amending Ordinance Number 2255 
Section 1 Entitled “Park Rules And Regulations” To Establish Amended Rules, 
Regulations And Hours Of Operation For Wald Park 

22. Ordinance Number 2635 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-2, Vestavia Hills Code 
Of Ordinances, Republished 2015 Entitled “Liberty Park Sports Complex” And Section 1 
Of Ordinance Number 2256 Entitled “Park Rules And Regulations”, To Amend Hours Of 
Operation, Rules And Regulations For Liberty Park Sports Complex 

23. Ordinance Number 2636 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-3 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances Republished 2015 Entitled “Little Shades Creek Park” And To 
Amend Section 2 Of Ordinance Number 2178 Entitled “Park Rules And Regulations”, To 
Amend Regulation Of The Hours Of Operation, Rules And Regulations For McCallum 
Park 

24. Ordinance Number 2637 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-4 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances Republished 2015 Entitled “Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex 
Cahaba Heights” And To Amend Section 1 Of Ordinance Number 2257 Entitled “Park 
Rules And Regulations” To Amend Regulation Of The Hours Of Operation, Rules And 
Regulations For Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex Cahaba Heights 



25. Ordinance Number 2638 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-5 Of The Vestavia Hills 
Code Of Ordinances Republished 2015 Entitled “Byrd Park” And To Amend Section 1 
Of Ordinance Number 2180 Entitled “Park Rules And Regulations” For Amended 
Regulation Of The Hours Of Operation, Rules And Regulations For Byrd Park 

26. Ordinance Number 2639 – An Ordinance To Amend Section 12-6 Vestavia Hills Code 
Of Ordinances Entitled “Shallowford Park” And Amend Section 1 Of Ordinance Number 
2181 Entitled “Park Rules And Regulations” To Amend The Hours Of Operation, Rules 
And Regulations For Shallowford Park 

27. Ordinance Number 2640 – An Ordinance Naming The Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex, 
Regulate The Hours Of Operation, And Establishing Rules And Regulations For Said 
Park 

28. Ordinance Number 2641 – An Ordinance Naming The Meadowlawn Park, Regulate The 
Hours Of Operation, And Establishing Rules And Regulations For Said Park 

29. Resolution Number 4794 - Annexation – 90-Day – 3425 Jones Drive; Estate of Millie 
Weaver, Owner 

30. Ordinance Number 2642 - Annexation – Overnight – 3425 Jones Drive, Estate of Millie 
Weaver, Owner 

31. Resolution Number 4795 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2510 and 2512 Dolly Ridge Road, 
Lots 21 & 22, Dolly Ridge Estates; Don and Kristie Garett and Todd and Leeba Strong, 
Owners 

32. Ordinance Number 2643 – Annexation – Overnight – 2510 and 2512 Dolly Ridge Road, 
Lots 21 & 22, Dolly Ridge Estates; Don and Kristie Garett and Todd and Leeba Strong, 
Owners 

33. Resolution Number 4796 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2611 Alta Vista Circle, Lot 7, 
Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Chad Speegle, Owner 

34. Ordinance Number 2644 – Annexation – Overnight – 2611 Alta Vista Circle, Lot 7, 
Altadena Valley Country Club Sector, Chad Speegle, Owner 

35. Resolution Number 4797 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2425 Kenvil Circle; Lot 37, Resurvey 
of Lots 18-20, 33-37 & 46-48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector; Anna and Brandon Rooks, Owners 

36. Ordinance Number 2645 – Annexation – Overnight – 2425 Kenvil Circle; Lot 37, 
Resurvey of Lots 18-20, 33-37 & 46-48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector; Anna and Brandon 
Rooks, Owners 

37. Resolution Number 4798 – Annexation – 90-Day – 4705 Caldwell Mill Road; David 
Acton Building Corporation, Owners 

38. Ordinance Number 2646 – Annexation – Overnight –4705 Caldwell Mill Road; David 
Acton Building Corporation, Owners 

39. Citizens Comments  



40. Executive Session – Sale/Purchase Of Property 
41. Motion For Adjournment 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4789 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2014 JEFFERSON COUNTY MULTI-
HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills City Council recognizes the threat that natural 

hazards pose to people and property within the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama has participated in the development of 

a multi-jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan, hereby known as the 2014 Jefferson County Multi-

Hazard Mitigation Plan in accordance with the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000; and 

 WHEREAS, the 2014 Jefferson County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan identifies 

mitigation goals and actions to reduce or eliminate long-term risks to people and property in the 

City of Vestavia Hills from impacts of future hazards and disasters; and 

 WHEREAS, adoption by the City of Vestavia Hills demonstrates our commitment to 

hazard mitigation and to achieving the goals outlined in the 2014 Jefferson County Multi-Hazard 

Mitigation Plan. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The 2014 Jefferson County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan is adopted by the City of 

Vestavia, Alabama; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4789 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



VOLENS ET POTENS 

 

 
 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 
TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
 
DATE:  January 14, 2016 
 
RE:  Recommendation for City Council resolution adopting the 2014 Jefferson County  
  Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 
Attached is a copy of the completed 2014 Jefferson County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan, including 
the City of Vestavia Hills’ mitigation actions and a letter from the Jefferson County Emergency 
Management requesting that the City Council adopt the plan. 
 
I recommend that the Vestavia Hills City Council adopt the 2014 Jefferson County Multi-Hazard 
Mitigation Plan, including the City of Vestavia Hills’ mitigation actions, as presented. 

Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 1



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 2



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 3



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 4



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 5



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 6



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 7



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 8



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 9



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 10



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 11



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 12



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 13



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 14



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 15



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 16



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 17



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 18



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 19



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 20



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 21



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 22



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 23



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 24



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 25



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 26



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 27



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 28



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 29



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 30



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 31



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 32



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 33



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 34



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 35



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 36



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 37



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 38



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 39



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 40



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 41



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 42



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 43



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 44



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 45



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 46



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 47



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 48



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 49



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 50



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 51



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 52



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 53



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 54



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 55



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 56



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 57



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 58



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 59



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 60



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 61



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 62



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 63



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 64



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 65



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 66



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 67



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 68



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 69



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 70



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 71



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 72



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 73



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 74



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 75



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 76



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 77



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 78



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 79



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 80



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 81



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 82



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 83



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 84



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 85



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 86



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 87



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 88



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 89



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 90



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 91



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 92



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 93



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 94



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 95



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 96



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 97



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 98



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 99



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 100



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 101



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 102



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 103



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 104



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 105



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 106



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 107



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 108



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 109



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 110



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 111



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 112



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 113



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 114



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 115



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 116



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 117



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 118



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 119



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 120



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 121



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 122



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 123



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 124



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 125



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 126



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 127



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 128



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 129



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 130



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 131



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 132



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 133



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 134



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 135



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 136



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 137



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 138



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 139



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 140



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 141



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 142



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 143



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 144



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 145



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 146



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 147



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 148



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 149



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 150



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 151



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 152



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 153



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 154



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 155



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 156



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 157



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 158



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 159



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 160



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 161



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 162



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 163



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 164



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 165



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 166



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 167



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 168



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 169



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 170



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 171



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 172



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 173



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 174



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 175



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 176



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 177



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 178



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 179



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 180



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 181



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 182



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 183



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 184



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 185



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 186



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 187



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 188



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 189



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 190



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 191



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 192



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 193



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 194



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 195



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 196



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 197



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 198



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 199



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 200



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 201



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 202



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 203



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 204



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 205



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 206



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 207



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 208



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 209



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 210



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 211



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 212



Exhibit - Resolution Number 4789 
Page 213



Ordinance Number 2628 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2628 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL FOR THE INTENDED PURPOSE OF ALLOWING 
SUBLEASING OF A SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE TO 3 
UNRELATED INDIVIDUALS UNTIL MAY 2016 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010 the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 entitled the Vestavia Hills 

Zoning Code and establishing a conditional use approval for certain uses not permissible 

by right in zoning classifications; and 

 WHEREAS, on October 9, 2015, Albert Elmore IV submitted an application for 

conditional use approval to allow him to sublease his residence located at 1708 Carovel 

Circle to three (3) unrelated individuals until May 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 1708 Carovel Circle, Lot 3, Block 1, Ridge 

Park Addition to Vestavia Hills is presently zoned Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density 

residential district); and 

 WHEREAS, Table 5 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code sets forth the permissible 

uses within an R-2 classification as single-family residential; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission at its regular 

meeting of November 12, 2015 voted to deny recommendation for approval of the 

request as presented, with certain stipulations as detailed below: 

1. That said Conditional Use will expire on May 31, 2016; and 

2. No more than four (4) people may reside in the home during the duration of 

the Conditional Use Approval; and 

3. Vehicles will be parked in an orderly fashion, either in the driveway, garage, 

or right-of-way immediately in front of said residence in a manner so as not to 

interfere with adjacent properties; and 

4. Premises must be mowed and maintained at all times. 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated October 9, 2015 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2628. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Ordinance Number 2628 
Page 2 

 
A. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Alberto Elmore, IV, for the 

subleasing of his home located at 1708 Carovel Circle, Lot 3, Block 1, Ridge Park 

Addition to Vestavia Hills with the following conditions: 

1. That said Conditional Use will expire on May 31, 2016; and 

2. No more than four (4) people may reside in the home during the duration of 

the Conditional Use Approval; and 

3. Vehicles will be parked in an orderly fashion, either in the driveway, garage, 

or right-of-way immediately in front of said residence in a manner so as not to 

interfere with adjacent properties; and 

4. Premises shall be mowed and maintained at all times. 

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2628 
Page 3 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2628 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 8th day of February, 2016 as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 

 
• CASE:  P-1115-67 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for Multi-Family Use  

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1708 Carovel Cir. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Albert Elmore IV 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant/owner is a student at Samford University 

who purchased the lot on Carovel Cir., adjacent to Columbiana Rd. Currently there 
are multiple unrelated males living in the house. The City became aware of this 
situation through various code and noise complaints received by the City. A zoning 
violation letter was issued at the end of August and is attached. The applicant has 
acknowledged these issues and has agreed to take corrective actions to remedy. The 
applicant has agreed to let the conditional use expire at the end of the school year in 
May.  
 
The property is zoned R-2. R-2 zoning limits uses to single family dwellings. The 
definition of a single family dwelling includes the language: A building designed for 
or occupied exclusively by one family… 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  This request can be considered 

consistent with the plan because the house will still remain residential in appearance. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission add the 
following conditions: 

A. The Conditional Use will expire on May 31, 2016; 
B. No more than four (4) people may be living in the house; 
C. Cars will be parked in an orderly fashion, either in the driveway or 

garage; 
D. Yard must be mowed and maintained 



 2 

 
2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request 
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use 
Approval for Multi-Family Use Located At 1708 Carovel Cir. with the following conditions: 

1. The conditional use will expire on May 31, 2016; 
2. No more than four (4) people may be living in the 

house; 
3. Cars will be parked in an orderly fashion, either in 

the driveway or garage; and 
4. Yard must be mowed and maintained. 

Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Goodwin – no   Mr. Burrell – no   
Mr. Gilchrist – no   Mr. Sharp – no          
Mr. Wolfe – no   Mr. Visintainer – no   
Mr. Brooks – no    Mr. Larson – no     
Motion failed. 

 



P&Z Application 

Page 4 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

APPLICATION 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

I. 	INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION:  

(1) The Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission meets regularly on the 
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Council Chambers at the 
Municipal Center. 

(2) All materials and information relating to a zoning/rezoning request or conditional 
use approval before the Planning and Zoning Commission must be submitted to 
the Office of the City Clerk no later than 25 working  days prior to the 
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. All information relating to 
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the City Clerk no 
later than 20 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which is shall be considered. 
All information relating to Final Map approvals must be submitted to the Office 
of the City Clerk no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which it 
is to be considered. 

(3) This application must be filled out in its entirety complete with zip codes. 
(4) All applicable fees shall accompany this application prior to its being considered 

complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 along with applicable 
postage per property owner to be notified for Commission meeting. Fees may 
also include notification fees for City Council meeting and publication fees which 
will be billed to applicant at a later date.  **No permits will be issued until all fees 
have been paid. 

(5) Appropriate plats and maps with proper legal description shall accompany this 
application. Please refer to attached checklist. 

II. 	APPLICANT INFORMATION: (owner of property) 

NAME: 	PAe)(1.- E6,6-re- 

ADDRESS: 	-30 8  6 r avcA (;va,le.  
Xl4  

MAILING ADDRESS (if different from above) 

PHONE NUMBER: Home 440(4 1S S.-  &CO t 	Office 	  

NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT: 	  



(olelic  
Representing Agent (if any)/date Owner Signature/Date 

/con-
tiotari: P lic 

. My aom sion expires  
— day g , 20)%  

P&Z Application 

Page 5 

III. ACTION REQUESTED 

Request that the above described property be approved conditional use approval pursuant 
to Section 	 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code. 

Current Zoning of Property: Fcm4ky  

 

 

Requested Conditional use For the intended purpose of: 	04141:0 9,A  

voomtwak) Aroaqk tiovi 201(1. 5ce. ccormatAL leAcr 
(Example: From "VH R-1 "to "VH 0-1'" for office building) 
**if additional information is needed, please attached full description of request** 

IV. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 	(address, legal, etc.) 

't y,c)14. 	pettit  11.00c. 

Property size: 

 

feet X 	 feet. Acres: .3 

     

INFORMATION 	ATTACHED: 

Attached Checklist complete with all required information. 

Application fees submitted. 

VI. 	I do hereby declare the above statements are true and that I, the owner, and/or my duly 
appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing. 

V. 

Givezns ir my hand and seal 
thisc 	day o 	)C—'7 	, 20/1-->  . 

........... 



Residents Vestavia and others, whom it may concern, 

The reason for my letter is two fold: one, I want to issue a formal apology to 
the residents of Carovel Circle and two, I want to declare my intentions for my 
residence at 1708 Carovel Circle. 

At the beginning of December 2014, I purchased the house after it had been 
vacant and neglected for many months. The yard was in shambles and the exterior 
of the house had been shown no noticeable attention for a considerable amount of 
time. The week after I bought the house I began to slowly remedy the out of control 
shrubs and vines growing up the house. By February, I had the house looking much 
better then when I first acquired it. However, this summer I was out of state on a 
two month long missions trip with Campus Outreach, a college Ministry at Samford 
University. It is during that time that the temporary occupants that were living in 
the house neglected basic landscaping needs and the grass grew to unacceptable 
heights. I have since then bought a mower and cut the grass regularly about once 
every two weeks. 

It is for the summer months that I want to apologize to the residents of 
Carovel Circle. I should have checked in with the occupants to assure they were 
cutting the grass and not just assuming they were taking care of it. This will not be a 
problem going forward. 

I also want to declare my intentions for the house going forward. I am 
planning on living there through the month of May of 2016 when I will graduate 
college. I am applying for conditional use for the three other guys living with me 
who will also graduate in May. At that time, I am going to start a 45-60 day 
remodeling phase. I am going to paint the exterior as well as remodel the interior, 
budgeting for a full-scale remodel equal to about half the value of the house. During 
that time, I will also do landscaping to the front and back yard. In July I hope to sell 
the house and put this saga behind me. 

I am asking conditional use until May from the residents of Carovel Circle and 
the court. I want to be as agreeable as possible so please let me know what I can do 
to continue being a better neighbor. 

Sincerely, 

Albert Elmore IV 



City of Vestavia Hills 
Office of the City Clerk 
Planning & Zoning 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills Alabama 35216 
(205) 978-0131 

P1115-67//29-36-3-1-5 
1708 Carovel Circle 
Conditional Use to allow Multi-
Family Use 
Albert Elmore, IV 	R2 

August 31, 2015 

Albert Elmore, IV 
1708 Carovel Circle 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 

RE: 	Complaint Number: 201500112 	 Sent Via USPS Certified Return Receipt 
PID #: 29-36-3-001-005.000 	 #7015 1730 0000 9287 5533 
Zoned: 	Vestavia Hills R-2 (single family residential) 

Property Location: 	1708 Carovel Circle; Lot 3, Block 1, Ridge Park Addition to Vestavia Hills (MB 
6o MP 13); Vestavia Hills AL 35216 

Attention Property Owner: 

A complaint has been received that the following violation(s) exist on the above referenced property 
deeded to you and/or under your control through Warranty Deed as recorded in Book 201484, Page 6334, 
Jefferson County Alabama. 

Zoning — Violation of Zoning — Use of Single-family residence for multiple unrelated occupants; R-2  
Medium Density Residential District.  

To comply with the Zoning Ordinance and/or Subdivision Regulations, you must: 

Cease and desist all occupancy of home with the exception of a single-family or a single occupant with one 
(1) unrelated roommate. 

Contact our office for additional information at 205-978-0184. 

You have the right to appeal zoning violations to the Board of Zoning Adjustment/Planning and Zoning 
Commission for their consideration of the matter. 

You have fifteen (15) days from the date of this letter, or attempt by the United States Postal Service to deliver 
this letter, to take correction action. Failure to have the existing violations corrected or to allow future 
violations, may result in immediate criminal proceedings, which may include a warrant for your arrest or 
criminal summons. 

This is the only notice you will receive.  Please contact Zoning Enforcement at 205-978-0184 upon 
receipt of this notice to discuss this matter. 



/ HOMEWOOD 

onop • Woe. 3 
gateway 

• L' i f" ^, V°. 

11 • 

• 

HOOVER 

high 
density 

residential 

- Berry 
I Middle 

School 
WINOS • WW1  

sm•• • Awn* • am, 

highway 
commercial i i  

low and 
medium 
density 

residential' 

mixed office & 
neighborhood, 

retail 

Figure 20: Columbiana Road 
Land Use Analysis 

Neighborhood  •  prirrurily low  /  medium density onaletamily residential 
area with higher densities near village tenter(a) Other uses  may  Include 
beheads, places of worship. reacational areas, and open space. 

Village Center  •  Mead use centers with highest densities in core areas. 
Mix of use* should include retail and service busiroacks, professional Mien, 
high density residential areas. institutions, recr.tion areas, and  public spates. 

Commercial Core  -  primarily high densay, retail and wonrr business 
arras with professional offices and multifamily residentts on upper floon or 
on periphery Other uses  may unchain inseinanons and public space. 

Gateways and Nodes  •  Gateways are entryways Into the community or 
village enhanced with consistent ovule, lanthoming, and other elements 
Nodes an SW..  suds an  transit stops. where public spaces. swage. and other 
Public design elements should be considered. 

Professional Offices • primarily professional orb..., uses. Denim ,  should 
vary according to surroundings. Other toes may include ret a il and services 
(supporting offices and employees), places of worship, pubic spion• and open space. 

Recreation and Open Space -PINK and Mime seeseanws (aolinea and 
reamed natural  spaces.  Recreation facilities may be active. mune or combined. Open 
mac. are areas presencd in a natural kart and may include panne mcicational 

Trailhcads  -  Tradheads are public sues along a nail, where bike racks, searing, 
parking, and public amenities are provided for trail users_ 

■ Schools  .sdiod facilities admmorrared by the Vesravia Hills School System. 

n 

0 
rtes 	v • 

105 	 Vestavia Hills Comprehensive Plan 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4790 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR VESTAVIA MART LLC D/B/A VESTAVIA 
MART; SADEQ AHMED MOHAMED MAFLAHI, 
EXECUTIVE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Vestavia Mart LLC d/b/a Vestavia Mart, located at 2544 Rocky 

Ridge Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the sale of 050 - Retail Beer (off-premises 

only) and 070 - Retail Table Wine (off-premises only); Sadeq Ahmed Mohamed Maflahi, 

executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 













Resolution Number 4791 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4791 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AND IMPLEMENTING THE 2014-2015 
CLASSIFICATION SURVEY OF THE PERSONNEL BOARD OF 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA 

 
 WHEREAS, the Enabling Act of the State of Alabama requires that all positions in 

the Merit System be reviewed by the Personnel Board of Jefferson County (PBX) at least 

once every five years to assure that employees have been assigned to appropriate 

classifications.  The intent of the survey is to validate classifications and identify any 

employees who are performing duties that are significantly different from their classification; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Personnel Board of Jefferson County has completed the final phase 

of the 2014-2015 Classification Survey for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and 

recommendations are marked as Exhibit A, attached hereto and made part of this Resolution 

Number 4791; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama has adopted 

this Resolution number 4752 establishing a general fund budget for the period of October 1, 

2015 to September 30, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, said budget includes funding authorization for the recommendations of 

the Personnel Board of Jefferson County. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Vestavia, Alabama at a regular meeting, duly assembled, with a quorum being 

present, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, do hereby adopt the 

2014-2015 Classification Survey recommendation with an implementation date not later than 

the first payroll begin date on or after October 1, 2015; and 

That this Resolution Number 4791 shall become effective immediately upon its 

adoption by the Mayor and City Council for the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of February, 

2016. 

 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



Resolution Number 4791 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution No. 4791 - Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4792 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4792 
 
 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal 

property detailed in the attached “Exhibit A; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell and/or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4792 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 8th day of 

February, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Brian Davis
Sent: Tuesday, February 02, 2016 4:05 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: surplus items

Becky, we would like to add these to the agenda for surplus. 
 

•         Scott's mower serial# 3219706433 Model# CV4918 (No Asset #) 
•         Ford tractor 1710 Serial #UL 15944 Model # AL 312A (Assets # 12010) 
•         John Deere tractor 2155 Model #3179 DL‐017 Serial # XL02155G690450 (Asset # 12028) 
•         Dump Truck 1995 Ford F Series Vin# 1FDPF70J5SVA43779 
•         Utility Trailer 8’ X 20’ (no serial or asset number) 

 
 
"The pessimist sees difficulty in every opportunity.  The optimist sees opportunity in every difficulty." 
Winston Churchill 
 

 
 
Brian C. Davis, Director 
Department of Public Services 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
P 205 978 0150 | vhal.org 

   
 



 

03524211.1 

  EXCERPTS FROM THE MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 

The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills met in regular public session at the 
Vestavia Hills Municipal Center in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, at 5:00 p.m. on February 
8, 2016.  The meeting was called to order by the Mayor, and the roll was called with the following 
results: 
 

Present: Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr., Mayor 
 Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tempore 
 John Henley 
 George Pierce 
 Jim Sharp 
 

 Absent:  _________________________________ 
 

*     *     * 
 

The Mayor stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 
 

*     *     * 
 

Thereupon, the following resolution was introduced in writing by the Mayor, and 
considered by the City Council: 
 



 

03524211.1 

RESOLUTION NO. 4793 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING DISCLOSURE CONTROLS 
AND PROCEDURES AND CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, as follows: 

Section 1.  Findings and Representations 

The City Council has found and determined, and does hereby find, determine and declare 
as follows:  

(a) From time to time, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (the “City") issues 
municipal securities in the form of notes or warrants, or other obligations (collectively, 
“Municipal Securities") which are subject to the continuing disclosure requirements and 
undertakings under 17 CFR Section 240.15c2-12(“Rule 15c2-12”) with respect to financial 
information, operating data, and other events and information regarding the City. 

(b) It is necessary and desirable and in the bests interests of  the City that the City 
ensure compliance with the disclosure obligations of the City under applicable federal securities 
laws, including without limitation Rule 15c2-12, by the adoption of  disclosure controls and 
procedures for reviewing, updating and maintaining all final official statements (as defined in 
Rule 15c2-12) and continuing disclosure filings of the City and the completion of compliance in 
all respects with the Municipalities Continuing Disclosure Cooperation Initiative of the SEC 
(“MCDC Initiative") as previously approved and authorized by the City on November 10, 2014. 

Section 2.  General Authorizations 

(a) The City Council of the City does hereby approve, authorize, ratify and confirm 
the “Disclosure Controls and Procedures” in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A 
and presented to the City Council of the City at this meeting, and, by adopting such disclosure 
controls and procedures and by requiring staff of the City to adhere to such disclosure controls 
and procedures, the City hereby formalizes appropriate controls and procedures to ensure 
compliance with the City’s disclosure obligations under the federal securities laws. 

(b) The City Council of the City hereby (i) designates the Mayor and City Manager to 
implement such disclosure controls and procedures and (ii) authorizes the Mayor and City 
Manager, on a periodic basis, to review such disclosure controls and procedures basis and, as 
necessary, to update them.  

(c) The Mayor and City Manager of the City be and hereby are authorized and 
directed to act on behalf of the City, and in their sole discretion, to negotiate, approve and make 
the offer of settlement of the City to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission in 
connection with the completion by the City of compliance with the MCDC Initiative, and in this 
connection the Mayor and City Manager be and hereby are authorized to undertake such actions 
as they may deem necessary and advisable, including the execution of such documents as may be 
required in order to carry out the foregoing. 



 

03524211.1 

(d) The officers of the City and any person or persons designated and authorized by 
any officer of the City to act in the name and on behalf of the City, or any one or more of them, 
are authorized to do and perform or cause to be done and performed in the name and on behalf of 
the City such other acts, to pay or cause to be paid on behalf of the City such related costs and 
expenses, and to execute and deliver or cause to be executed and delivered in the name and on 
behalf of the City such other notices, requests, demands, directions, consents, approvals, orders, 
applications, certificates, agreements, further assurances, or other instruments or 
communications, under the corporate seal of the City, or otherwise, as they or any of them may 
deem necessary, advisable, or appropriate in order to carry into effect the intent of the provisions 
of this resolution and the disclosure controls and procedures approved hereby. 

Section 3.  Ratifications 

Each act of any officer or officers of the City or any person or persons designated and 
authorized to act by any officer of the City, which act would have been authorized by the 
foregoing provisions of this resolution except that such action was taken prior to the adoption of 
this resolution, is hereby ratified, confirmed, approved and adopted. 

Section 4.  General 

(a) All ordinances, orders or resolutions of the City, or any part or provision of any 
thereof, in conflict or inconsistent with the provisions of this resolution are hereby, to the extent 
of such conflict or inconsistency, repealed. 

(b) This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 



 

03524211.1 

After said resolution had been discussed and considered in full by the Council, it was 
moved by Councilmember ___________ that said resolution be now placed upon its final passage 
and adopted.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember ____________.  The question being put 
as to the adoption of said motion and the final passage and adoption of said resolution, the roll 
was called with the following results: 
 

Ayes: Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr., Mayor 
 Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tempore 
 John Henley 
 George Pierce 
 Jim Sharp 

 
 Nays:  None 
 

The Mayor thereupon declared said motion carried and the resolution passed and 
adopted as introduced and read. 

 

 



 

03524211.1 

*     *     *     * 

There being no further business to come before the meeting, it was moved and seconded 
that the meeting be adjourned.  Motion carried. 

Minutes approved: 

________________________________ 
Mayor  

________________________________ 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

________________________________ 
Member of the City Council 

________________________________ 
Member of the City Council 

________________________________ 
Member of the City Council 

S E A L 

Attest:____________________________ 
 City Clerk 



 

03524211.1 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 
 CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK 
 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that (1) I am the duly elected, qualified and acting 
City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (the "Municipality"); (2) as Clerk of the 
Municipality I have access to all original records of the Municipality and I am duly authorized to 
make certified copies of its records on its behalf; (3) the above and foregoing pages constitute a 
complete, verbatim and compared copy of excerpts from the minutes of a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Municipality duly held on February 8, 2016, the original of which is on file 
and of record in the minute book of the City Council in my custody; (4) the resolution set forth in 
such excerpts is a complete, verbatim and compared copy of such resolution as introduced and 
adopted by the City Council on such date; and (5) said resolution is in full force and effect and 
has not been repealed, amended or changed. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as Clerk of the Municipality and 
have affixed the official seal of the Municipality, this _____ day of February, 2016. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama 

S E A L 
  



 

03071261.1 

 

 

 

 

 

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

 

of 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 

 

 

December 1, 2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 1



 

  
03071261.1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

This manual details the disclosure controls and procedures (the “Disclosure Controls”) 
maintained by the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (the “City”).  The Disclosure Controls are 
intended to ensure that the City maintains adequate procedures for gathering, analyzing and 
disclosing all information that is disclosed in the City’s official statements and continuing disclosure 
reports. 

This manual begins with an overview that summarizes each component of the Disclosure 
Controls, indicating the individual(s) within the City with primary responsibility for that particular 
Disclosure Control.  Successive articles and sections of this manual provide additional information 
regarding the various Disclosure Controls. 

Capitalized terms used in the Disclosure Controls have the meanings given those terms in 
Exhibit A hereto. 

This manual was approved by the City Council of the City on November __, 2014, as 
evidenced by the resolution attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

Overview 

1.  Disclosure Working Group:  Primary Responsibility — Mayor.  The City maintains 
a Disclosure Working Group.  The membership, responsibilities and activities of the Disclosure 
Working Group are described in Article 1. 

2.  Disclosure Coordinator:  Primary Responsibility — City Manager.  The City 
maintains a Disclosure Coordinator, who is generally responsible for coordinating the City’s 
disclosure, including the Disclosure Controls.  See Article 2 for details regarding the Disclosure 
Coordinator. 

3.  Internal Disclosure Certifications:  Primary Responsibility — City Manager.  
The Disclosure Coordinator will obtain certifications from specified persons within the City in 
connection with the publication of each Offering Statement and Periodic Report.  See Article 3 for 
more information. 

4.  Disclosure Counsel:  Primary Responsibility — Maynard, Cooper & Gale, P.C.  
The City will retain counsel who will represent the City in connection with its securities obligations 
and other related issues.  Disclosure Counsel’s role is described in Article 4. 

5.  Review of Disclosure Controls:  The City Council will periodically review these 
Disclosure Controls as described in Article 5. 

6.  Disclosure Training: The City Manager will periodically undergo training regarding 
these Disclosure Controls as described in Article 6. 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 2



 

 2 
03071261.1 

ARTICLE 1 
 

Disclosure Working Group 

SECTION 1.1 Membership 

The Disclosure Working Group consists of those officials of the City listed in Exhibit C.  The 
composition of the Disclosure Working Group may be changed from time to time as the City Council 
determines is necessary or desirable.  The Disclosure Coordinator may invite Disclosure Counsel to 
participate in any of the meetings of the Disclosure Working Group. In the case of a new offering, the 
City Council may invite representatives of the firm selected to underwrite the new offering to be a part of 
the Disclosure Working Group.  

SECTION 1.2 Responsibilities 

The Disclosure Working Group (or selected members thereof) is responsible for: 

(a) reviewing in advance any Offering Statement to determine the adequacy and 
accuracy of the disclosures included therein, 

(b) reviewing in advance each Periodic Report to determine the adequacy and 
accuracy of the disclosures, and 

(c) otherwise considering and determining, on a periodic basis, the materiality of 
information relating to, and the scope of disclosure obligations for, the City. 

SECTION 1.3 Process 

The members of the Disclosure Working Group shall meet or participate by conference call 
upon the direction of the Disclosure Coordinator but in any event before the publication of any 
Offering Statement and before the filing of any Periodic Reports.  At any such meeting, the members 
of the Disclosure Working Group shall discuss the following topics: 

(1) Review and Analyze Reports and Other Information.  The members of 
the Disclosure Working Group shall review and discuss (1) the most recently published 
budget of the City, (2) the most recently published comprehensive annual financial report or 
audit of the City, including any letters or communications containing recommendations by 
the City’s independent auditors, (4) the most recent Offering Statement, including disclosure 
regarding the City’s pension obligations and other post-employment obligations, (5) the most 
recent Periodic Reports, and (6) any other documents as directed by the Disclosure 
Coordinator.   

(2) Structural Balance of the Budget and Financial Condition of the 
City.  The members of the Disclosure Working Group shall discuss the current internal 
projections of revenues and expenditures of the City and in connection therewith, (a) if there 
exists a structural deficit or surplus, (b) if the assumptions underlying such internal 
projections are reasonable and (c) if any risks in the operations of the City or risks that are 
external from the City challenge any of such assumptions. 

(3) Contingent Risks.  The members of the Disclosure Working Group shall 
discuss the following contingent risk matters: (1) whether the City is properly insured 
against the risks to its operations, (2) the City’s exposure to investment losses in any 
investment pool or other investments, (3) any material litigation that is pending or, to the 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 3



 

 3 
03071261.1 

knowledge of the members, threatened against the City and (4) whether disclosure of 
uninsured risks is adequate. 

After the Disclosure Working Group has met and considered the above-mentioned subjects, 
the members shall review the draft of such Offering Statement or Periodic Report to determine if the 
draft (a) fully and accurately presents the financial condition and operations of the City and (b) does 
not omit any material information regarding the City, including any information that the members 
shall have discussed as described above.  Upon the conclusion of such meeting, the members shall 
determine (1) any additional investigation that the City must conduct into its financial condition and 
operations and (2) any modifications that are or may be necessary to the Offering Statement or 
Periodic Report so as to prevent a deficiency in the disclosure of the City’s financial condition and 
operations.  The Disclosure Coordinator, together with the assistance of the other members, shall be 
responsible for the implementation of such list.  The Disclosure Coordinator shall consult with other 
members of the Disclosure Working Group to address and resolve any outstanding issues.  If all 
issues have not been resolved to the satisfaction of the Disclosure Coordinator or any other member 
of the Disclosure Working Group, then such person should notify the Mayor and such additional 
meetings of the Disclosure Working Group shall be convened until all such issues have been resolved 
to the satisfaction of its members. 

ARTICLE 2 
 

Disclosure Coordinator 

SECTION 2.1 Selection 

The Disclosure Coordinator is selected from time to time by the City Council, on the basis of 
his or her familiarity with particular aspects of the City’s disclosure and reporting matters or on his 
or her ability to effectively monitor and coordinate such disclosures and reporting based on his or her 
positions within the City.  At present time, the Disclosure Coordinator shall be the City Manager. 

SECTION 2.2 Responsibilities 

The Disclosure Coordinator is responsible, within his or her area of expertise, for: 

(a) monitoring the compliance by the City with these Disclosure Controls 
generally; 

(b) serving as a “point person” for personnel to communicate issues or 
information that should be or may need to be included in any Offering Statement or Periodic 
Report; 

(c) updating this Disclosure Controls manual from time to time as necessary or 
appropriate; 

(d) preparing and circulating a detailed time schedule for review and submission 
of information in connection with any Offering Statement and Periodic Report; 

(e) following up with others to make sure that assigned tasks have been 
completed on a timely basis and making sure, in the case of Periodic Reports, that the 
document is filed on a timely basis; 

(f) keeping informed regarding all of the City’s public disclosures; 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 4



 

 4 
03071261.1 

(g) informing employees of the City who are responsible either to review or 
supply information for an Offering Statement or Periodic Report (other than the members of 
the Disclosure Working Group) of the securities responsibilities of the City and such 
employees through the distribution of existing manuals and policies of the City regarding 
securities disclosure and through coordination with City Attorney, as needed; and 

(h) documenting the City’s disclosure processes generally (e.g., records of 
Disclosure Working Group meetings, maintenance of reporting checklists as appropriate, 
internal certifications). 

SECTION 2.3 Material Event Reports 

As noted in Section 2.2, the Disclosure Coordinator’s responsibilities include monitoring the 
compliance by the City with these Disclosure Controls generally and  serving as a “point person” for 
personnel to communicate issues or information that should be or may need to be included in any 
Periodic Report, including any material event report required to be filed by the City in connection 
with its obligations under any continuing disclosure agreement entered into pursuant to Rule 15c2-
12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  In furtherance of the Disclosure Coordinator’s 
responsibilities with respect to such material event reports, the Disclosure Coordinator shall monitor 
whether any events listed in any such continuing disclosure agreement shall have occurred and, in 
appropriate situations, shall coordinate the filing of material event reports. 

SECTION 2.4 Maintenance of Files for Offering Statements and Periodic Reports 

As noted in Section 2.2, the Disclosure Coordinator’s responsibilities include documenting 
the City’s disclosure processes generally (e.g., records of Disclosure Working Group meetings, 
maintenance of reporting checklists as appropriate, internal certifications).  In furtherance of the 
Disclosure Coordinator’s responsibilities for documenting disclosure processes with respect to each 
Offering Statement and each Periodic Report, the Disclosure Coordinator shall maintain a file that 
includes evidence that proper reviews are followed in connection with such Offering Statement or 
Periodic Report, evidence that these Disclosure Controls have been followed in connection with such 
Offering Statement or Periodic Report, and evidence of sourcing of information in connection with 
such Offering Statement or Periodic Report. 

ARTICLE 3 
 

Internal Certifications 

Before the printing of any Offering Statement and the filing of any Periodic Report, the 
Disclosure Coordinator shall obtain from those persons listed in Exhibit D those certifications 
covering the indicated subjects listed in Exhibit D.  These certifications shall be for internal 
purposes only and shall not be delivered to or relied upon by any underwriter or other 
member of an underwriting team.  The Disclosure Coordinator may obtain these 
certifications through e-mail correspondence. 

ARTICLE 4 
 

Disclosure Counsel Review 

The City will retain Disclosure Counsel to perform the following tasks: 

(a) Review or manage the City’s Offering Statements, as directed by the 
Disclosure Coordinator; 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 5



 

 5 
03071261.1 

(b) Perform the following tasks: 

(i) Attend meetings of the Disclosure Working Group as requested by the 
Disclosure Coordinator or the Mayor; 

(ii) In connection with the preparation of an Offering Statement by the City, 
review the following documents in an effort to assist the City and the members of the 
Disclosure Working Group to reasonably investigate the finances and operations of 
the City: 

(A) The most recently published budget of the City; 

(B) The most recently published comprehensive annual financial 
report or audit of the City, including any letters or communications 
containing recommendations by the City’s independent auditors; and 

(C) Such other documents as the Disclosure Coordinator shall direct 
or such Disclosure Counsel shall request. 

(c) Advise the City regarding: 

(i) Specific disclosure issues and problems arising out of the City’s 
operations; 

(ii) The standards of disclosure under applicable securities laws; 

(iii) Adequacy of the City’s disclosure in any Offering Statement; and 

(iv) Completeness and clarity of the City’s disclosure in any Offering 
Statement; 

(d) Interface with the underwriting team with respect to any Offering Statement 
prepared in connection with the issuance of any Bonds; 

(e) Any other advice regarding securities laws as the City may request from time 
to time; and 

(f) Periodic training. 

Disclosure Counsel may also serve as Bond Counsel in connection with the issuance by the 
City of any Bonds. 

ARTICLE 5 
 

Review of Disclosure Controls 

SECTION 5.1 Process 

At least every 3 years, the Mayor and City Manager will conduct an evaluation of the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of the City’s Disclosure Controls with the assistance of the 
other members of the Disclosure Working Group and other employees of the City, to the extent 
determined by any of them to be necessary or appropriate. 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 6



 

 6 
03071261.1 

SECTION 5.2 Scope 

The evaluation should normally include the following (subject to modification in the 
discretion of the person or persons completing the evaluation based on the particular facts and 
circumstances then existing): 

(a) confirming that the Disclosure Working Group and all of its members 
performed their responsibilities in a thorough manner; 

(b) consulting with the City’s internal auditors as to whether they have any 
concerns or suggestions regarding the disclosure process or internal controls and confirming 
that the City’s internal auditors are not aware of any actual or anticipated changes in 
internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls; 

(c) as necessary or appropriate, consulting with outside advisors involved in the 
process, such as Disclosure Counsel and the City’s independent auditors, as to whether they 
have any concerns or suggestions regarding the disclosure process or internal controls; 

(d) making similar inquiry of the internal persons responsible for coordinating 
the process (including, for example, as to whether they encountered any resistance from 
participants in the process); and 

(e) confirming that the tabular information and other financial data included in 
the Offering Statements and Periodic Reports are consistently and properly verified and 
validated. 

ARTICLE 6 
 

Disclosure Training 

SECTION 6.1 Scope of Training, Etc. 

At least every two (2) years, the Disclosure Coordinator will undergo training regarding Rule 
15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and an overview of the City’s obligations under 
the federal securities laws. Such training may include, but is not limited to, attending post-issuance 
compliance sessions, teleconferences, or webinars presented by (1) Digital Assurance Certification, 
LLC, (2) the Alabama League of Municipalities, (3) Government Finance Officers Association, 
National Association of Bond Lawyers or other similar trade organizations, and (4) public finance 
law firms. 

Upon completion of the training, such persons will provide written certification that they 
have completed the disclosure training and that they have reviewed and understand this Disclosure 
Controls manual and Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that they will 
comply with this Disclosure Controls manual. 

SECTION 6.2 Certification Regarding Training 

Not later than sixty (60) business days after the end of each fiscal year of the City in which 
disclosure training is conducted, the Disclosure Coordinator shall provide written certification to the 
City Council that the disclosure training has been completed. 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 7



 

 7 
03071261.1 

ARTICLE 7 
 

Other Matters 

SECTION 7.1 Distribution of Disclosure Controls Manual 

A copy of this Disclosure Controls manual shall be distributed every 3 years to the City 
Council and any updates to this Disclosure Controls manual shall be distributed to such persons 
upon issuance. 

SECTION 7.2 Public Statements Regarding Financial Information 

Whenever the City makes statements or releases information relating to its finances to the 
public that is reasonably expected to reach investors and the trading markets (including Periodic 
Reports, financial reports and statements contained on the City’s web site, and other financial 
reports and statements of the City), the City is obligated to ensure that such statements and 
information are complete, true, and accurate in all material aspects.  The Disclosure Coordinator 
shall have primary responsibility for ensuring that such statements and information are accurate 
and not misleading in any material aspect.  The Disclosure Coordinator and Disclosure Counsel shall 
work together to ensure that all public statements and information released by the City are accurate 
and not misleading in any material aspects. 

SECTION 7.3 Dissemination Agent 

The City may, from time to time, appoint or engage a dissemination agent to assist it in 
carrying out its obligations under this this Disclosure Controls manual, and may discharge any such 
dissemination agent, with or without appointing a successor dissemination agent.  Any such 
dissemination agent shall be designated as such in writing by the City, and any such dissemination 
agent shall file with the City a written acceptance of such designation. 

SECTION 7.4 Governing Body Approvals 

Should it be determined that it is appropriate for the governing body of the City to approve 
any Offering Statement or any Periodic Report, the Disclosure Coordinator shall provide copies of 
such Offering Statement or Periodic Report to the governing body of the City not less than three (3) 
days prior to the date of such approval. 

 

 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 8



 

 A-1 
03071261.1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Definitions 

“Bonds” means all bonds, warrants, certificates of participation or any other evidence of 
indebtedness issued to public investors executed or issued by the City or by any other entity and the 
source of repayment of debt service on such bonds, certificates of participation, notes or indebtedness 
in the General Fund or any Special Fund of the City. 

“Offering Statement” means any preliminary official statement, final official statement or 
any other disclosure document that the City prepares in connection with the offering or sale of any 
Bonds. 

“Periodic Report” means (1) any annual report required to be filed by the City in 
connection with its obligations under any continuing disclosure agreement entered into pursuant to 
Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, (2) any material event report required to be 
filed by the City in connection with its obligations under any continuing disclosure agreement 
entered into pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (3) any report 
to be filed voluntarily by the City in connection with any continuing disclosure agreement entered 
into pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 9



 

 B-1 
03071261.1 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Resolution of City Council of the City 
Approving Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

See attached. 

 

 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 10



 

 C-1 
03071261.1 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Members of Disclosure Working Group 

(1) Mayor; 

(2) City Manager; 

(3) Auditor;  

(4) City Attorney; and  

(5) upon the request of the Disclosure Coordinator, Disclosure Counsel.  

 

 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 11



 

 D-1 
03071261.1 

EXHIBIT D 
 

Internal Certifications 

(1) City Manager.  Such person has reviewed all of the financial information and operating 
data of the City, including, in the case of an Offering Statement, such financial information and operating 
data contained in Appendix A, and, to that person’s knowledge, there is no material misstatement of fact 
therein or an omission of material fact necessary to make the statements therein not misleading. If 
appropriate, the City Manager may qualify his or her certification by identifying those factors the City 
Manager has taken into account in determining what may be material. 

 (2) City Attorney.   

(i) Such person has reviewed the Offering Statement, including Appendix A, and, to that 
person’s knowledge, there is no material misstatement of fact therein or an omission of material 
fact necessary to make the statements therein not misleading (excluding any financial, 
demographic or other statistical information or data). 

(ii) Such person has reviewed the description of all litigation in the Offering Statement or 
the Periodic Report and, to such person’s knowledge, there is no other material pending or 
threatened litigation affecting the City or its assets. 

Resolution No. 4793 - Exhibit 
Page 12



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4799 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NUMBER 4728 FOR AN 
ADDITIONAL $90,000 TO COMPLETE CONTRUCTION OF A SMALL 
PORTION OF ROADWAY KNOWN AS HOLLIS CROSSING 

 
 WHEREAS, on June 22, 2015, the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4728 to appropriate an expenditure of $326,100 for construction of a small portion of 

roadway now known as Hollis Crossing at a cost not to exceed $326,100; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Engineer has submitted expenditure detail which shows 

unexpected utility relocation and other required change orders exceed the anticipated costs by 

approximately $87,000; a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and incorporated 

into this Resolution Number 4799 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to complete 

said portion of roadway. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend an additional $90,000 to complete 

said portion of roadway now known as Hollis Crossing; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4799 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Cahaba	Heights	Elementary	Roadway	(Hollis	Crossing)
Phase	1A	Construction,	Resolution	#4728
Construction costs through Jan 2016 (billing received and processed through end of January)

item no item amount description

Utility Relocation/Repairs/Installation
budgeted 55,000.00$         

costs to date 120,943.45$      
0.01 Alabama Power 52,154.00$          electrical line relocation
0.02 B & H 54,750.00$          * water line installation, sanitary sewer materials

0.03 BWWB 3,335.00$            * water relocation permit fees

0.04 Sentry 4,216.50$            * water line repairs

0.05 gpr 320.00$               * water/gas line locating

0.06 conduit 2,322.27$            AT&T, Charter conduit installation
0.07 ULCS 3,845.68$            * AT&T, Charter pole sets

General Construction Items

budgeted 326,100.00$      
costs to date 330,827.62$      

1 Murphy and Day 201,867.00$       ** site work, general excavation, project supervision
2 Vulcan 35,248.95$          stone
3 Hanson 8,327.60$            pipe
4 RJ Whisenant 19,035.00$          curb and gutter
5 McCool 13,500.00$          inlet box
6 USA Ready Mix 3,340.00$            concrete
7 Terrapro 7,715.00$            ** erosion control

8.01 Dunn 13,598.49$          asphalt
8.02 Jones 10,050.00$          asphalt
8.03 striping 450.00$               asphalt
9 Mularski 7,458.00$            sidewalk

10.01 William Hughes 2,125.00$            wall labor
10.02 rock for wall 3,774.00$            wall material
10.03 wall material 644.48$               wall material
11 grass seed 190.00$               seed

12.01 Lowes 1,663.60$            misc material
12.02 fence 340.50$               misc material
13 National Tree 1,500.00$            tree removal

Additional site expenses related to diesel tank cleanup
101 tank cleanup 1,500.00$            * unexpected site condition

* unexpected/ unbudgeted items

** additional costs associated with project delays

Final completion items/work not yet billed
site work 15,000.00$          final site cleanup
wall 3,500.00$            wall completion
asphalt 41,000.00$          final asphalt
striping 4,500.00$            final striping
landscape 11,000.00$          *** intended to be part of future phase
irrigation 5,000.00$            *** intended to be part of future phase
stone 2,000.00$            *** intended to be part of future phase

Estimated cost to complete 82,000.00$        

Professional Services

Sain 4,000.00$            site inspection, monitoring
Terracon 1,500.00$            material testing

5,500.00$           

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4799



Ordinance Number 2630 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2630 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 26th day of October, 2015, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

1724 Vestaview Lane 
Charles Farrell III, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 25, Township 18, Range 3 West, 
more particularly described as follows: 

 
Begin at the Southeast Corner of said quarter-quarter section, thence west 
along the south line thereof a distance of 231.8 feet to the point of 
beginning of tract here described, said point being in the center of Rogers 
Road; thence continue West along said south line a distance of 206.8 feet; 
thence an an angle to the right of 88 degrees 53 minutes 30 seconds run 
north 179.92 feet; thence at an angle to the right of 90 degrees, 55 minutes 
run east 206.78 feet; thence at an angle to the right of 89 degrees 05 
minutes  run south 180.62 feet to the point of beginning.  

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2630 
Page 2 

 
 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2630 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinancce Number 263
Page

30 
e 3 

 

 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2630



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2630



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2630



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2630



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2630



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2630



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2630



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2630



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2630



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2630



Ordinance Number 2631 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2631 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 
16, 1985, AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE 
THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY 
FROM JEFFERSON COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS 
R-2 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

1724 Vestaview Lane 
Charles Farrell III, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 25, Township 18, Range 3 West, 
more particularly described as follows: 

 
Begin at the Southeast Corner of said quarter-quarter section, thence west 
along the south line thereof a distance of 231.8 feet to the point of 
beginning of tract here described, said point being in the center of Rogers 
Road; thence continue West along said south line a distance of 206.8 feet; 
thence an an angle to the right of 88 degrees 53 minutes 30 seconds run 
north 179.92 feet; thence at an angle to the right of 90 degrees, 55 minutes 
run east 206.78 feet; thence at an angle to the right of 89 degrees 05 
minutes  run south 180.62 feet to the point of beginning.  

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2631 
Page 2 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2631 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2631 
Page 3 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JANUARY 14, 2016 
 

• CASE:  P-0116-02 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-
2 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1724 Vestaview Ln. 

 
•    APPLICANT/OWNER: Charles S. Farrell III 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 

11/09/15 with the passage of Ordinance 2609. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning for 1724 
Vestaview Ln. from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2For The Purposes Of Annexation 
Second was by Mr. House. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Sharp – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Mr. House – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 



Ordinance Number 2632 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2632 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 26th day of October, 2015, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2739 Rocky Ridge Road 
Cameron Eaton and Tison Bargainier, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 

A parcel of land situated in the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section 29, Township 18 South, Range 2 West. Jefferson 
County, Alabama, said parcel being a portion of Lot 1 Lloyd's Subdivision 
as recorded in Map Volume ISO, Page 41, in the Office of the Judge of 
Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particular described as 
follows: Begin at a found rebar marking the Northwest corner of said Lot 
1 Lloyd's Subdivision; thence run along the North line of said Lloyd)s 
Subdivision for a distance of 150.00 feet to a set capped rebar stamped 
CA-560-LS; thence turn and an angle of 98 degrees 06 minutes 56 seconds 
to the left and run a distance of 200.00 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar 
stamped GSA, said point marking the city limits of Jefferson County and 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama; thence turn an angle of81 degrees 53 minutes 04 
seconds to the left and run along the North line of said city limits for a 
distance of 150.00 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar stamped GSA, said 
point also lying on the Easternmost right of way of Rocky Ridge Road; 
thence turn an angle of 98 degrees 00 minutes 57 seconds to the left and 
run along said right of way for a distance of 60.00 feet to a found capped 



Ordinance Number 2632 
Page 2 

 
rebar stamped Weygand; thence turn an angle of 180 Degrees 08 Minutes 
33 Seconds to the left and run along said right of way for a distance of 
140.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Said parcel contains 29,689 
Square Feet or 0.68 Acres more or less. 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2632 
Page 3 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2632 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



 

Ordinancce Number 263
Page

32 
e 4 

 

 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2632



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2632



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2632



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2632



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2632



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2632



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2632



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2632



Ordinance Number 2633 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2633 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

2739 Rocky Ridge Road 
Cameron Eaton and Tison Bargainier, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 

A parcel of land situated in the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section 29, Township 18 South, Range 2 West. Jefferson 
County, Alabama, said parcel being a portion of Lot 1 Lloyd's Subdivision 
as recorded in Map Volume ISO, Page 41, in the Office of the Judge of 
Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama, being more particular described as 
follows: Begin at a found rebar marking the Northwest corner of said Lot 
1 Lloyd's Subdivision; thence run along the North line of said Lloyd)s 
Subdivision for a distance of 150.00 feet to a set capped rebar stamped 
CA-560-LS; thence turn and an angle of 98 degrees 06 minutes 56 seconds 
to the left and run a distance of 200.00 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar 
stamped GSA, said point marking the city limits of Jefferson County and 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama; thence turn an angle of81 degrees 53 minutes 04 
seconds to the left and run along the North line of said city limits for a 
distance of 150.00 feet to a set 5/8 inch capped rebar stamped GSA, said 
point also lying on the Easternmost right of way of Rocky Ridge Road; 
thence turn an angle of 98 degrees 00 minutes 57 seconds to the left and 
run along said right of way for a distance of 60.00 feet to a found capped 
rebar stamped Weygand; thence turn an angle of 180 Degrees 08 Minutes 
33 Seconds to the left and run along said right of way for a distance of 
140.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Said parcel contains 29,689 
Square Feet or 0.68 Acres more or less. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that said rezoning shall be approved with the 

entire development of four (4) lots with a standard 40’ front setback in lieu of the R-1 

required front setback similar to adjacent developments. 



Ordinance Number 2633 
Page 2 

 
 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2633 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2633 
Page 3 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     JANUARY 14, 2016 
 

• CASE:  P-0116-03 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-
1 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2739 Rocky Ridge Rd. 

 
•    APPLICANT/OWNER: Slate Barganier Building 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed (90 days) by City Council on 

11/09/15 with the passage of Resolution 2739. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. Annexed property will be part of a 4 lot 
subdivision with adjacent property already in the City (also zoned R-1). As a 
condition of annexation and rezoning, the front setbacks will be 40’ instead of 
standard 50’ to match surrounding developments. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Engineering and drainage review is ongoing. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

MOTION  Mr. Wolfe made a motion to recommend approval of Rezoning for 2739 Rocky 
Ridge Rd. from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 for the purposes of annexation with 
the condition that the front setback be reduced to 40’. Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Sharp – yes          Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Mr. House – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 
 



Ordinance Number 2634 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2634 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 12-1 OF THE VESTAVIA 
HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES ENTITLED “WALD PARK” 
AND AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2255 SECTION 1 
ENTITLED “PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS” TO 
ESTABLISH AMENDED RULES, REGULATIONS AND HOURS 
OF OPERATION FOR WALD PARK 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board 

met in regular session and adopted and established amended rules, regulations and hours 

of operation for Wald Park; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board has requested the 

Director of Public Services to present these amended rules, regulations and hours of 

operation to the City Council for consideration; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the Vestavia Hills City Council have reviewed the 

recommendations of the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board and feel it is in the 

best interest of the public to amend Section 12-1 of the Vestavia Hills Code of 

Ordinances, Republished 2015, and amending Section 1 of Ordinance Number 2255 and 

adopt said amended rules, regulations and hours of operation for Wald Park. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, THAT SECTION 12-1 OF THE 

VESTAVIA HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES, REPUBLISHED 2015 ENTITLED 

“WALD PARK” AND SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2634 ENTITLED 

“PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS” BE AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS: 
 

(1) Wald Park shall open at 5:00 a.m. and close at 9:30 p.m. except for events 

scheduled through the office of parks and recreation. Unauthorized 

individuals in the park after closing can be subject to penalties described 

in Section 2.  

(2) Maintenance crews have first priority on any space within the park. 

(3) Access to some areas of the park may be limited due to scheduled events; 

therefore, if any field has been prepared for a scheduled event, it shall be 



Ordinance Number 2634 
Page 2 

 
off-limits to public access. Access may also be limited due to periodic 

down time to allow recuperation of fields at the direction of the parks and 

recreation director or the maintenance superintendent.  

(4) There may be times when fields are closed for maintenance. 

(5) No skates, rollerblades, ripsticks, bicycles, go-carts, scooters, motorcycles, 

four-wheelers, three-wheelers, skateboards, or any other type of vehicle, 

except for service vehicles, are allowed off the designated parking area at 

any time.  

(6) Golf, archery, glass containers, camping, open fires, dumping, fireworks 

and noisemakers are prohibited.  

(7) Fireworks, explosives, or slingshots are not allowed.  

(8) Smoking is restricted per city ordinance. 

(9) Use, solicitation, possession, or distribution of any controlled substance is 

strictly prohibited.  

(10) Pets should be kept on a leash and under control at all times. Any solid 

excretion matter from said pet must be picked up from any surface area. 

Pets are not allowed on any athletic surfaces including, but not limited to, 

baseball fields, softball fields, soccer fields, football fields, lacrosse fields, 

tennis courts or basketball courts.  

(11) Parking is restricted to designated areas. 

(12) Alcohol is prohibited unless a permit has been previously issued and is 

physically present with the applicant at the park during use.  The permit 

must be signed by the Parks and Recreation Superintendent or his 

designee and noted with appropriate dates/times.   Note:  A fee (or 

deposit) may be required prior to a permit being issued. 

(13) Violators will be asked to leave the premises and are subject to further 

action penalties as described in Section 2.  

 

SECTION 2. FINES AND PUNISHMENT: 

 It shall be unlawful to violate any of the terms and provisions of this Ordinance.  

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the said terms and provision of this 



Ordinance Number 2634 
Page 3 

 
Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be punished in accordance with Title 11-45-9, Code of 

Alabama, 1975, for a misdemeanor violation for each such offense.  Each day any 

violation of this Ordinance shall  constitute a separate offense.   

 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY: 

 If any part, section, or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding. 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 The provisions of this Ordinance Number 2634 shall become effective 

immediately upon the passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and the publication and/or posting thereof as required by 

Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2634 
Page 4 

 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2634 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 
Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2635 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2635 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 12-2, VESTAVIA HILLS 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, REPUBLISHED 2015 ENTITLED 
“LIBERTY PARK SPORTS COMPLEX” AND SECTION 1 OF 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2256 ENTITLED “PARK RULES AND 
REGULATIONS”, TO AMEND HOURS OF OPERATION, RULES 
AND REGULATIONS FOR LIBERTY PARK SPORTS COMPLEX 

 

 WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board 

met in regular session and adopted and established amended rules, regulations and hours 

of operation for Liberty Park Sports Complex; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board has requested the 

Director of Public Services to present these amended rules, regulations and hours of 

operation to the City Council for consideration; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the Vestavia Hills City Council have reviewed the 

recommendations of the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board and feel it is in the 

best interest of the public to amend Section 12-2 of the Vestavia Hills Code of 

Ordinances Republished 2015 and Ordinance Number 2256 and to adopt said amended 

rules, regulations and hours of operation for Liberty Park Sports Complex. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, THAT SECTOIN 12-2, 

VESTAVIA HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES REPUBLISHED 2015 ENTITLED 

“LIBERTY PARK SPORTS COMPLEX” AND SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 

NUMBER 2256 ENTITLED “PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS” ARE 

HEREBY AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS: 
 

(1) Liberty Park Sports Complex shall open at daybreak and close at 9:30 p.m. 

except for events scheduled through the office of parks and recreation. 

Unauthorized individuals in the park after closing can be subject to 

penalties described in Section 2.  

(2) Maintenance crews have first priority on any space within the park. 



Ordinance Number 2635 
Page 2 

 
(3) Access to some areas of the park may be limited due to scheduled events; 

therefore, if any field has been prepared for a scheduled event, it shall be 

off-limits to public access. Access may also be limited due to periodic 

down time to allow recuperation of fields at the direction of the parks and 

recreation director or the maintenance superintendent.  

(4) There may be times when fields are closed for maintenance. 

(5) No skates, rollerblades, ripsticks, bicycles, go-carts, scooters, motorcycles, 

four-wheelers, three-wheelers, skateboards, or any other type of vehicle, 

except for service vehicles, is allowed off the designated parking area at 

any time.  

(6) Golf, archery, glass containers, camping, open fires, dumping, fireworks 

and noisemakers are prohibited.  

(7) Fireworks, explosives, or slingshots are not allowed.  

(8) Smoking is restricted per city ordinance. 

(9) Use, solicitation, possession, or distribution of any controlled substance is 

strictly prohibited.  

(10) Pets should be kept on a leash and under control at all times. Any solid 

excretion matter from said pet must be picked up from any surface area. 

Pets are not allowed on any athletic surfaces including, but not limited to, 

baseball fields, softball fields, soccer fields, football fields, lacrosse fields, 

tennis courts or basketball courts.  

(11) Parking is restricted to designated areas. 

(12) Alcohol is prohibited unless a permit has been previously issued and is 

physically present with the applicant at the park during use.  The permit 

must be signed by the Parks and Recreation Superintendent or his 

designee and noted with appropriate dates/times.   Note:  A fee (or 

deposit) may be required prior to a permit being issued. 



Ordinance Number 2635 
Page 3 

 
(13) Violators will be asked to leave the premises and are subject to further 

action penalties as described in Section 2.  

 

SECTION 2. FINES AND PUNISHMENT: 

 It shall be unlawful to violate any of the terms and provisions of this Ordinance.  

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the said terms and provision of this 

Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be punished in accordance with Title 11-45-9, Code of 

Alabama, 1975, for a misdemeanor violation for each such offense.  Each day any 

violation of this ordinance shall constitute a separate offense.   

 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY: 

 If any part, section, or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding. 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 The provisions of this Ordinance Number 2635 shall become effective 

immediately upon the passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and the publication and/or posting thereof as required by 

Alabama law. 

 

DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2635 
Page 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2635 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of January, 2016, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 
Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2636 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2636 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 12-3 OF THE VESTAVIA 
HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES REPUBLISHED 2015 ENTITLED 
“LITTLE SHADES CREEK PARK” AND TO AMEND SECTION 2 
OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2178 ENTITLED “PARK RULES AND 
REGULATIONS”, TO AMEND REGULATION OF THE HOURS 
OF OPERATION, RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR 
MCCALLUM PARK 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board 

met in regular session and adopted and established amended rules, regulations and hours 

of operation for McCallum Park; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board has requested the 

Director of Public Services to present these rules, regulations and hours of operation to 

the City Council for consideration; and 

 On February 22, 2010, the Vestavia Hills City Council adopted and approved 

Ordinance Number 2326 naming the park know as “Little Shades Creek Park” as 

“McCallum Park” in honor of Charles A. McCallum Jr; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the Vestavia Hills City Council have reviewed the 

recommendations of the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board and feel it is in the 

best interest of the public to amend Section 12-3 of the Vestavia Hills Code of 

Ordinances and Section 2 of Ordinance Number 2178 and to adopt said amended rules, 

regulations and hours of operation for McCallum Park. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT: 

Section 12-3 of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinances, Republished 2015, 

entitled “Little Shades Creek Park” and Section 2 of Ordinance Number 2178 is hereby 

amended in its entirety as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2636 
Page 2 

 
“SECTION 2.  PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS: 

 

(1) The area known as Little Shades Creek Park shall be known and 

designated as “McCallum Park.” 

(2) McCallum Park shall open at 6:00 a.m. and shall close at sunset, except 

for events scheduled through the office of parks and recreation. 

Unauthorized individuals in the park after closing can be subject to 

penalties described in Section 2.  

(3) The pavilions are available on a first-come basis. 

(4) Groups of 25 or more individuals must register with the office of park and 

recreation a minimum of 72 hours prior to meeting or event. Such 

registration shall be made during normal business hours.  

(5) Fireworks, explosives, bows and arrows, crossbows or slingshots are not 

allowed.  

(6) Use, solicitation, possession, or distribution of any controlled substance is 

strictly prohibited.  

(7) Alcohol is prohibited unless a permit has been previously issued and is 

physically present with the applicant at the park during use.  The permit 

must be signed by the Parks and Recreation Superintendent or his 

designee and noted with appropriate dates/times.   Note:  A fee (or 

deposit) may be required prior to a permit being issued.  

(8) Smoking is restricted per city ordinance. 

(9) No go-carts, scooters, motorcycles, four-wheelers, three-wheelers, or any 

other type of vehicle is allowed off of the designated parking area at any 

time.  

(10) Pets should be kept on a leash and under control at all times, and any solid 

excretion matter from said pet must be picked up from any surface area.  

(11) No hitting of golf balls at any time on any field. 



Ordinance Number 2636 
Page 3 

 
(12) Parking is restricted to designated areas. 

(13) Bicycles are allowed in designated trail areas. 

(14) Violators will be asked to leave the premises, and are subject to further 

action penalties as described in Section 2.  

 

SECTION 3. FINES AND PUNISHMENT: 

 It shall be unlawful to violate any of the terms and provisions of this Ordinance. 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the said terms and provisions of this 

ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 

fine not less than twenty five dollars ($25.00) nor more than the maximum penalty 

allowed by the State of Alabama for a misdemeanor violation for each such "offense". 

Each day any violation of this Ordinance shall continue shall constitute a separate 

offense. 

 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY: 

 If any part, section, or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding. 

 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 The provisions of this Ordinance Number 2636 shall become effective 

immediately upon the passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and the publication and/or posting thereof as required by 

Alabama law. 

 

DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 



Ordinance Number 2636 
Page 4 

 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2636 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills Civic Center and New Merkle House this the ______ day of ______________, 
2007. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2637 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2637 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 12-4 OF THE VESTAVIA 
HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES REPUBLISHED 2015 ENTITLED 
“VESTAVIA HILLS ATHLETIC COMPLEX CAHABA HEIGHTS” 
AND TO AMEND SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2257 
ENTITLED “PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS” TO AMEND 
REGULATION OF THE HOURS OF OPERATION, RULES AND 
REGULATIONS FOR VESTAVIA HILLS ATHLETIC COMPLEX 
CAHABA HEIGHTS  

 
 WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board 

met in regular session and adopted amended rules, regulations and hours of operation for 

Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex Cahaba Heights; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board has requested the 

Director of Public Services to present these rules, regulations and hours of operation to 

the City Council for consideration; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the Vestavia Hills City Council have reviewed the 

recommendations of the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board and feel it is in the 

best interest of the public to amend Ordinance Number 2257 to adopt said amended rules, 

regulations and hours of operation for Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex Cahaba Heights. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, THAT SECTION 12-4 OF THE 

VESTAVIA HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES REPUBLISHED 2015 ENTITLED 

“VESTAVIA HILLS ATHLETIC COMPLEX CAHABA HEIGHTS” AND 

SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2257 ENTITLED “PARK RULES AND 

REGULATIONS” IS HEREBY AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2637 
Page 2 

 
SECTION 1.  PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS: 
 

(1) Vestavia Hills Athletic Complex Cahaba Heights shall open at 6:30 a.m. 

and close at sunset except for events scheduled through the office of parks 

and recreation. Unauthorized individuals in the park after closing can be 

subject to penalties described in Section 2.  

(2) Maintenance crews have first priority on any space within the park. 

(3) Access to some areas of the park may be limited due to scheduled events; 

therefore, if any field has been prepared for a scheduled event, it shall be 

off-limits to public access. Access may also be limited due to periodic 

down time to allow recuperation of fields at the direction of the parks and 

recreation director or the maintenance superintendent.  

(4) There may be times when fields are closed for maintenance. 

(5) No skates, rollerblades, ripsticks, bicycles, go-carts, scooters, motorcycles, 

four-wheelers, three-wheelers, skateboards, or any other type of vehicle, 

except for service vehicles, is allowed off of the designated parking area at 

any time.  

(6) Golf, archery, glass containers, camping, open fires, and dumping are 

prohibited.  

(7) Fireworks, explosives, or slingshots are not allowed.  

(8) Smoking is restricted per city ordinance. 

(9) Use, solicitation, possession, or distribution of any controlled substance is 

strictly prohibited.  

(10) Pets should be kept on a leash and under control at all times. Any solid 

excretion matter from said pet must be picked up from any surface area. 

Pets are not allowed on any athletic surfaces including, but not limited to, 

baseball fields, softball fields, soccer fields, football fields, lacrosse fields, 

tennis courts or basketball courts.  

(11) Parking is restricted to designated areas. 



Ordinance Number 2637 
Page 3 

 
(12) Alcohol is prohibited unless a permit has been previously issued and is 

physically present with the applicant at the park during use.  The permit 

must be signed by the Parks and Recreation Superintendent or his 

designee and noted with appropriate dates/times.   Note:  A fee (or 

deposit) may be required prior to a permit being issued. 

(13) Violators will be asked to leave the premises and are subject to further 

action and penalties as described in Section 2. 

 
SECTION 2. FINES AND PUNISHMENT: 

 It shall be unlawful to violate any of the terms and provisions of this Ordinance.  

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the said terms and provision of this 

Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be punished in accordance with Title 11-45-9, Code of 

Alabama, 1975, for a misdemeanor violation for each such offense.  Each day any 

violation of this Ordinance shall constitute a separate offense.   

 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY: 

 If any part, section, or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding. 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 The provisions of this Ordinance Number 2637 shall become effective 

immediately upon the passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and the publication and/or posting thereof as required by 

Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 2637 
Page 4 

 
DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2637 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2638 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2638 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 12-5 OF THE VESTAVIA 
HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES REPUBLISHED 2015 ENTITLED 
“BYRD PARK” AND TO AMEND SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2180 ENTITLED “PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS” 
FOR AMENDED REGULATION OF THE HOURS OF 
OPERATION, RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR BYRD PARK 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board 

met in regular session and adopted amended rules, regulations and hours of operation for 

Byrd Park; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board has requested the 

Director of Public Services to present these rules, regulations and hours of operation to 

the City Council for consideration; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the Vestavia Hills City Council have reviewed the 

recommendations of the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board and feel it is in the 

best interest of the public to adopt said amended rules, regulations and hours of operation 

for Byrd Park. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, THAT SECTION 12-5 OF THE 

VESTAVIA HILLS CODE OF ORDINANCES REPUBLISHED 2015 ENTITLED 

“BYRD PARK” AND TO AMEND SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2180 

ENTITLED “PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS” BE AMENDED AS 

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS: 
 

(1) Byrd Park shall open at 6:00 a.m. and shall close at sunset, except for 

events scheduled through the office of parks and recreation. Unauthorized 



Ordinance Number 2638 
Page 2 

 
individuals in the park after closing can be subject to penalties described 

in Section 2.  

(2) Use, solicitation, possession, or distribution of any controlled substance is 

strictly prohibited.  

(3) Alcohol is prohibited unless a permit has been previously issued and is 

physically present with the applicant at the park during use.  The permit 

must be signed by the Parks and Recreation Superintendent or his 

designee and noted with appropriate dates/times.   Note:  A fee (or 

deposit) may be required prior to a permit being issued.  

(4) Smoking is restricted per city ordinance. 

(5) No bicycles, go-carts, scooters, skateboards, motorcycles, four-wheelers, 

three-wheelers, or any other type of vehicle is allowed off of the 

designated parking area at any time.  

(6) Pets should be kept on a leash and under control at all times, and any solid 

excretion matter from said pet must be picked up from any surface area.  

(7) No hitting of golf balls at any time on any field. 

(8) Parking is restricted to designated areas. 

(9) Fireworks, explosives, bows and arrows, crossbows or slingshots are not 

allowed. 

(10) Violators will be asked to leave the premises, and are subject to further 

action and penalties as described in Section 2.  

 
SECTION 2. FINES AND PUNISHMENT: 

 It shall be unlawful to violate any of the terms and provisions of this Ordinance. 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the said terms and provisions of this 

ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 

fine not less than twenty five dollars ($25.00) nor more than the maximum penalty 



Ordinance Number 2638 
Page 3 

 
allowed by the State of Alabama for a misdemeanor violation for each such "offense". 

Each day any violation of this Ordinance shall constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY: 

 If any part, section, or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding. 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 The provisions of this Ordinance Number 2638 shall become effective 

immediately upon the passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and the publication and/or posting thereof as required by 

Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2638 
Page 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2638 is a true 
and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official 
records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle Houser and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2639 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2639 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 12-6 VESTAVIA HILLS 
CODE OF ORDINANCES ENTITLED “SHALLOWFORD PARK” 
AND AMEND SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2181 
ENTITLED “PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS” TO AMEND 
THE HOURS OF OPERATION, RULES AND REGULATIONS 
FOR SHALLOWFORD PARK 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board 

met in regular session and adopted amended rules, regulations and hours of operation, 

rules and regulations for Shallowford Park; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board has requested the 

Director of Public Services to present these amended rules, regulations and hours of 

operation to the City Council for consideration; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the Vestavia Hills City Council have reviewed the 

recommendations of the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board and feel it is in the 

best interest of the public to adopt said amended rules, regulations and hours of operation 

for Shallowford Park. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, THAT 12-6 VESTAVIA HILLS 

CODE OF ORDINANCES ENTITLED “SHALLOWFORD PARK” AND AMEND 

SECTION 1 OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 2181 ENTITLED “PARK RULES AND 

REGULATIONS” BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS: 
 

(1) Shallowford Park shall open at 6:00 a.m. and shall close at sunset, except 

for events scheduled through the Office of Parks and Recreation. 



Ordinance Number 2639 
Page 2 

 
Unauthorized individuals in the park after closing can be subject to 

penalties described in Section 2.  

(2) Use, solicitation, possession, or distribution of any controlled substance is 

strictly prohibited.  

(3) Alcohol is prohibited unless a permit has been previously issued and is 

physically present with the applicant at the park during use.  The permit 

must be signed by the Parks and Recreation Superintendent or his 

designee and noted with appropriate dates/times.   Note:  A fee (or 

deposit) may be required prior to a permit being issued.  

(4) Smoking is restricted per city ordinance. 

(5) No bicycles, go-carts, scooters, skateboards, motorcycles, four-wheelers, 

three-wheelers, or any other type of vehicle is allowed off of the 

designated parking area at any time.  

(6) Pets should be kept on a leash and under control at all times, and any solid 

excretion matter from said pet must be picked up from any surface area.  

(7) No hitting of golf balls at any time. 

(8) Parking is restricted to designated areas. 

(9) Fireworks, explosives, bows and arrows, crossbows or slingshots are not 

allowed. 

(10) Violators will be asked to leave the premises, and are subject to further 

action and penalties as described in Section 2.  

 
SECTION 2. FINES AND PUNISHMENT: 

 It shall be unlawful to violate any of the terms and provisions of this ordinance. 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the said terms and provisions of this 

ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 

fine not less than twenty five dollars ($25.00) nor more than the maximum penalty 



Ordinance Number 2639 
Page 3 

 
allowed by the State of Alabama for a misdemeanor violation for each such "offense". 

Each day any violation of this ordinance shall constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY: 

 If any part, section, or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding. 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 The provisions of this Ordinance Number 2639 shall become effective 

immediately upon the passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and the publication and/or posting thereof as required by 

Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr.  
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2639 
Page 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2639 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2640 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2640 
 

AN ORDINANCE NAMING THE SICARD HOLLOW ATHLETIC 
COMPLEX, REGULATE THE HOURS OF OPERATION, AND 
ESTABLISHING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR SAID PARK 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board 

met in regular session and adopted a name, hours of operation, rules and regulations for 

the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board has requested the 

Director of Public Services to present this name, rules, regulations and hours of operation 

to the City Council for consideration; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board voted to name the 

Sicard Hollow Ahtletic Complex as simply “SHAC;” and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the Vestavia Hills City Council have reviewed the 

recommendations of the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board and feel it is in the 

best interest of the public to adopt said name, rules, regulations and hours of operation for 

SHAC. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  DESIGNATION. 
 
 The fields, press boxes and all areas of the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex shall 

be known as “SHAC.”  Each reference to such athletic complex in an ordinance, map, 

resolution, document, record or other paper of the City of Vestavia Hills shall be deemed 

to as reference to “SHAC.” 

 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2640 
Page 2 

 
SECTION 2.  PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS. 
 

(1) SHAC shall open at 6:30 a.m. and close at sunset except for events 

scheduled through the office of parks and recreation. Unauthorized 

individuals in the park after closing can be subject to penalties described 

in Section 3.  

(2) Maintenance crews have first priority on any space within the park. 

(3) Access to some areas of the park may be limited due to scheduled events; 

therefore, if any field has been prepared for a scheduled event, it shall be 

off-limits to public access. Access may also be limited due to periodic 

down time to allow recuperation of fields at the direction of the parks and 

recreation director or the maintenance superintendent.  

(4) There may be times when fields are closed for maintenance. 

(5) No skates, rollerblades, ripsticks, bicycles, go-carts, scooters, motorcycles, 

four-wheelers, three-wheelers, skateboards, or any other type of vehicle, 

except for service vehicles, is allowed off of the designated parking area at 

any time.  

(6) Golf, archery, glass containers, camping, open fires, dumping, fireworks 

and noisemakers are prohibited.  

(7) Fireworks, explosives, slingshots are not allowed.  

(8) Smoking is restricted per city ordinance. 

(9) Use, solicitation, possession, or distribution of any controlled substance is 

strictly prohibited.  

(10) Pets are not allowed inside the fences of the athletic complex at any time.  

In other areas of the park, pets should be kept on a leash and under control 

at all times, and any solid excretion matter from said pet must be picked 

up from any surface area. 

(11) Parking is restricted to designated areas. 

(12) Alcohol is prohibited unless a permit has been previously issued and is 

physically present with the applicant at the park during use.  The permit 

must be signed by the Parks and Recreation Superintendent or his 



Ordinance Number 2640 
Page 3 

 
designee and noted with appropriate dates/times.   Note:  A fee (or 

deposit) may be required prior to a permit being issued. 

(13) Violators will be asked to leave the premises and are subject to further 

action and penalties as described in Section 3.  

 
SECTION 3. FINES AND PUNISHMENT: 

 It shall be unlawful to violate any of the terms and provisions of this ordinance. 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the said terms and provisions of this 

ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 

fine not less than twenty five dollars ($25.00) nor more than the maximum penalty 

allowed by the State of Alabama for a misdemeanor violation for each such "offense". 

Each day any violation of this ordinance shall constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY: 

 If any part, section, or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 The provisions of this Ordinance Number 2640 shall become effective 

immediately upon the passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and the publication and/or posting thereof as required by 

Alabama law. 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2640 
Page 4 

 
DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr.  
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2640 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2641 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2641 
 

AN ORDINANCE NAMING THE MEADOWLAWN PARK, 
REGULATING THE HOURS OF OPERATION, AND 
ESTABLISHING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR SAID PARK 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 19, 2016, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board 

met in regular session and adopted a name, hours of operation, rules and regulations for 

the Meadowlawn Park; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board has requested the 

Director of Public Services to present this name, rules, regulations and hours of 

operations to the City Council for consideration; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the Vestavia Hills City Council have reviewed the 

recommendations of the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board and feel it is in the 

best interest of the public to adopt said name, rules, regulations and hours of operation for 

Meadowlawn Park. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  DESIGNATION. 
 
 The areas of the public park located off of Dolly Ridge Road in the Meadowlawn 

community shall be known as “Meadowlawn Park.”  Each reference to such athletic 

complex in an ordinance, map, resolution, document, record or other paper of the City of 

Vestavia Hills shall be deemed to a reference to the “Meadowlawn Park.” 

 
SECTION 2.  PARK RULES AND REGULATIONS. 
 

(1) Meadowlawn Park shall open at 6:30 a.m. and close at sunset except for 

events scheduled through the office of parks and recreation. Unauthorized 



Ordinance Number 2641 
Page 2 

 
individuals in the park after closing can be subject to penalties described 

in Section 3.  

(2) Maintenance crews have first priority on any space within the park. 

(3) Access to some areas of the park may be limited due to scheduled events; 

therefore, if any field has been prepared for a scheduled event, it shall be 

off-limits to public access. Access may also be limited due to periodic 

down time to allow recuperation of fields at the direction of the parks and 

recreation director or the maintenance superintendent.  

(4) There may be times when fields are closed for maintenance. 

(5) No skates, rollerblades, ripsticks, bicycles, go-carts, scooters, motorcycles, 

four-wheelers, three-wheelers, skateboards, or any other type of vehicle, 

except for service vehicles, is allowed off of the designated parking area at 

any time.  

(6) Golf, archery, glass containers, camping, open fires, dumping, fireworks 

and noisemakers are prohibited.  

(7) Fireworks, explosives, slingshots are not allowed.  

(8) Smoking is restricted per city ordinance. 

(9) Use, solicitation, possession, or distribution of any controlled substance is 

strictly prohibited.  

(10) Pets are not allowed inside the fences of the athletic complex at any time.  

In other areas of the park, pets should be kept on a leash and under control 

at all times, and any solid excretion matter from said pet must be picked 

up from any surface area. 

(11) Parking is restricted to designated areas. 

(12) Alcohol is prohibited unless a permit has been previously issued and is 

physically present with the applicant at the park during use.  The permit 

must be signed by the Parks and Recreation Superintendent or his 

designee and noted with appropriate dates/times.   Note:  A fee (or 

deposit) may be required prior to a permit being issued. 

(13) Violators will be asked to leave the premises and are subject to further 

action and penalties as described in Section 3.  



Ordinance Number 2641 
Page 3 

 
 
SECTION 3. FINES AND PUNISHMENT: 

 It shall be unlawful to violate any of the terms and provisions of this Ordinance. 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the said terms and provisions of this 

ordinance shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 

fine not less than twenty five dollars ($25.00) nor more than the maximum penalty 

allowed by the State of Alabama for a misdemeanor violation for each such "offense". 

Each day any violation of this Ordinance shall constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY: 

 If any part, section, or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 

such holding. 

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE: 

 The provisions of this Ordinance Number 2641 shall become effective 

immediately upon the passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and the publication and/or posting thereof as required by 

Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr.  
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2641 
Page 4 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2641 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings  
      City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4794 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4794 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated December 22, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of February, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 24th day of February, 2016. 

 2.  That on the 23rd day of May, 2016, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such 

hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4794 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4794 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3425 Jones Drive 
Estate of Millie K. Weaver, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 32, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, 
Alabama, more particularly described as follows: 
 
Begin at the Southeast corner of said Northeast quarter of Southwest 
quarter, run thence Northwardly along the East line of said quarter-quarter 
section for a distance of 210 feet; run thence Westwardly for a distance of 
105 feet; run thence Southwardly for a distance of 105 feet; run thence 
Southwardly for a distance of 210 feet; run thence Eastwardly for a 
distance of 105 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4794 
Page 3 

 

 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4794



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4794



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4794



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4794



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4794



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4794



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4794



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4794



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4794



Ordinance Number 2642 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2642 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Estate of Millie K. Weaver dated 

December 22, 2015, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to 

the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
3425 Jones Drive 

Estate of Millie K. Weaver 
 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 32, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, 
Alabama, more particularly described as follows: 
 



Ordinance Number 2642 
Page 2 

 
Begin at the Southeast corner of said Northeast quarter of Southwest 
quarter, run thence Northwardly along the East line of said quarter-quarter 
section for a distance of 210 feet; run thence Westwardly for a distance of 
105 feet; run thence Southwardly for a distance of 105 feet; run thence 
Southwardly for a distance of 210 feet; run thence Eastwardly for a 
distance of 105 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2642 
Page 3 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2642 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinancce Number 264
Page

42 
e 4 

 

 



Resolution Number 4795 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4795 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 23, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of February, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 24th day of February, 2016. 

 2.  That on the 23rd day of May, 2016, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such 

hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4795 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4795 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2510 & 2512 Dolly Ridge Road 
Lots 21 & 22, Dolly Ridge Estates 

Don and Kristie Garrett & Todd and Leeba Strong, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 4795 
Page 3 

 

 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Exhibit - Resolution No. 4795



Ordinance Number 2643 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2643 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Don and Kristie Garrett & Todd 

and Leeba Strong dated November 23, 2015, that the property therein described be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory 

showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City 

Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
2510 & 2512 Dolly Ridge Road 

Lots 21 & 22, Dolly Ridge Estates 
Don and Kristie Garrett & Todd and Leeba Strong 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 2643 
Page 2 

 
  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2643 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2015, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2643 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4796 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4796 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated December 17, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of February, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 24th day of February 2016. 

 2.  That on the 23rd day of May, 2016, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such 

hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4796 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4796 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2611 Alta Vista Circle 
Lot 7, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 

Chad Speegle, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 4796 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution No. 4796 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4796 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4796 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4796 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4796 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4796 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4796 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4796 - Exhibits



Ordinance Number 2644 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2644 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Chad Speegle dated December 

17, 2015, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
2611 Alta Vista Circle 

Lot 7, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 
Chad Speegle 
 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 



Ordinance Number 2644 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2644 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2644 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4798 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4797 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated December 7, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of February, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 24th day of February, 2016. 

 2.  That on the 23rd day of May, 2016, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such 

hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4797 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4798 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2425 Kenvil Circle 
Lot 37, Resurvey of Lots 18-20, 33-37, and 46-48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 

Anna and Brandon Rooks, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 4798 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Resolution No. 4797 - Exhibits



Ordinance Number 2645 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2645 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Anna and Brandon Rooks dated 

December 7, 2015, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
2425 Kenvil Circle 

Lot 37, Resurvey of Lots 18-20, 33-37, and 46-48, Buckhead, 2nd Sector 
Anna and Brandon Rooks 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 2645 
Page 2 

 
  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2645 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2645 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 4798 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4798 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 30, 2015, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of February, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 24th day of February, 2016. 

 2.  That on the 23rd day of May, 2016, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such 

hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4798 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4798 
Page 2 

 
annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4705 Caldwell Mill Road 
David Acton Building Corporation, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of Southwest 1/4 of Section 34. Township 18. 
Range 2 West described as follows: Begin at the Southeast comer of the 
Northeast ¼ of Southwest ¼ of Section 34, Township 18. Range 2 West 
and run North along the Easterly boundary of said.1/4 1/4 for 233 feet to 
the point of beginning; thence tum an angle to the left of 90 degrees and 
run In a westerly direction for 224 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to 
the right of 90 degrees and run in a northerly direction for 83.3 feet to a 
point; thence tum an angle to the left of 77 degrees 50' and run in a 
Northeasterly direction for 169.8 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the 
right of 121 degrees 30' and run in a Northeasterly direction 210 feet to a 
point; then tum an angle to the right of 61degrees 18' and run in a 
Southeasterly direction for 250.2 feet to a point on the easterly boundary 
line of said 1/4 1/4  thence tum an angle to right of 72 degrees 33' and run 
in a southerly direction 199 feet to the point of beginning. Excepting any 
part of subject property which lies north of that certain hollow set out in 
instrument recorded in Volume 3779, Page 203. in the Office of the Judge 
of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
AND ALSO, begin at the Southwest corner of the Northeast 1/4 of 
Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, Township 18, Range 2 West and run North 
along the easterly boundary of said 1/4 for 233 feet to a point; thence tum 
an angle to the left of 90 degrees and run In a westerly direction 224 feet 
to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 90 degrees and run in a 
northerly direction 83.3 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the left of 
77 degrees 501 and run in a Northwesterly direction for 169.8 to the point 
of beginning; thence continue in a Northwesterly direction along the last 
described course for a distance of 210 feet; thence tum an angle to the 
right of 107 degrees 46' and run in a Northeasterly direction for a distance 
of 53.3 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 38 degrees 42' 
and run in a Northeasterly direction for 156.7 feet to a point; thence tum 
an angle to the right of 20 degrees 54' and run in a Northeasterly direction 
for 179 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 315 degrees 08' 
and run in a Southwesterly direction for 8 distance of 210 feet to the point 
of beginning. 
 
Excepting any part of Subject property which lies north of that certain 
hollow set out in Instrument recorded in Volume 3779, Page 204. in the 
Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Resolution Number 4798 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 4798 
Page 4 

 

 



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4798 - Exhibit



Ordinance Number 2646 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2646 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by David Acton Building 

Corporation dated November 30, 2015, that the property therein described be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its 

relationship to the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the 

City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
4705 Caldwell Mill Road 

David Acton Building Corporation 
 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of Southwest 1/4 of Section 34. Township 18. 
Range 2 West described as follows: Begin at the Southeast comer of the 
Northeast ¼ of Southwest ¼ of Section 34, Township 18. Range 2 West 
and run North along the Easterly boundary of said.1/4 1/4 for 233 feet to 



Ordinance Number 2646 
Page 2 

 
the point of beginning; thence tum an angle to the left of 90 degrees and 
run In a westerly direction for 224 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to 
the right of 90 degrees and run in a northerly direction for 83.3 feet to a 
point; thence tum an angle to the left of 77 degrees 50' and run in a 
Northeasterly direction for 169.8 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the 
right of 121 degrees 30' and run in a Northeasterly direction 210 feet to a 
point; then tum an angle to the right of 61degrees 18' and run in a 
Southeasterly direction for 250.2 feet to a point on the easterly boundary 
line of said 1/4 1/4  thence tum an angle to right of 72 degrees 33' and run 
in a southerly direction 199 feet to the point of beginning. Excepting any 
part of subject property which lies north of that certain hollow set out in 
instrument recorded in Volume 3779, Page 203. in the Office of the Judge 
of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
AND ALSO, begin at the Southwest corner of the Northeast 1/4 of 
Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, Township 18, Range 2 West and run North 
along the easterly boundary of said 1/4 for 233 feet to a point; thence tum 
an angle to the left of 90 degrees and run In a westerly direction 224 feet 
to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 90 degrees and run in a 
northerly direction 83.3 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the left of 
77 degrees 501 and run in a Northwesterly direction for 169.8 to the point 
of beginning; thence continue in a Northwesterly direction along the last 
described course for a distance of 210 feet; thence tum an angle to the 
right of 107 degrees 46' and run in a Northeasterly direction for a distance 
of 53.3 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 38 degrees 42' 
and run in a Northeasterly direction for 156.7 feet to a point; thence tum 
an angle to the right of 20 degrees 54' and run in a Northeasterly direction 
for 179 feet to a point; thence tum an angle to the right of 315 degrees 08' 
and run in a Southwesterly direction for 8 distance of 210 feet to the point 
of beginning. 
 
Excepting any part of Subject property which lies north of that certain 
hollow set out in Instrument recorded in Volume 3779, Page 204. in the 
Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published/posted in accordance with Alabama law. 

 

 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of February, 2015. 



Ordinance Number 2646 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2646 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of February, 2016, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2646 
Page 4 

 

 


	2016_0208CC_A
	Proclamation fmla
	2016_0208CC_A
	Resolution 4789
	Ordinance 2628
	Resolution 4790
	Resolution 4791
	Resolution 4792
	Resolution 4793
	Resolution 4799
	Ordinance 2630
	Ordinance 2631
	Ordinance 2632
	Ordinance 2633
	Ordinance 2634
	Ordinance 2635
	Ordinance 2636
	Ordinance 2637
	Ordinance 2638
	Ordinance 2639
	Ordinance 2640
	Ordinance 2641
	Resolution 4794
	Ordinance 2642
	Resolution 4795
	Ordinance 2643
	Resolution 4796
	Ordinance 2644
	Resolution 4797
	Ordinance 2645
	Resolution 4798
	Ordinance 2646



